
Mark Saccoccio  
Town Clerk  

  01525 631920 
      info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 

 

 
This will be a remote meeting held via Microsoft Teams in accordance with The Local Authorities 
and Crime Panels (Coronavirus)(Flexibility of Meetings)(England and Wales) Regulations 2020 

15 January 2021 
 
To:  Members of the Living History Task and Finish Group (Councillors D Bowater, 
K Cursons, A Dodwell, M Freeman, V Harvey, G Perham and P Snelling) 
(Copies to all Town Councillors for information) 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Living History Task and Finish 
Group to be held on Thursday, 28 January 2021 commencing at 10.00 am in the This 
will be a remote meeting held via Microsoft Teams in 
accordance with The Local Authorities and Crime Panels 
(Coronavirus)(Flexibility of Meetings)(England and Wales) 
Regulations 2020.  
 
https://tinyurl.com/y5b6v492  or by tel: +44 20 3795 5672 (Conf ID: 363 405 452#) 
 
 

 
M Saccoccio  
Town Clerk 

AGENDA 
 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

 Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a record be kept of the 
Members present and that this record form part of the minutes of the meeting. 
Members who cannot attend a meeting should tender apologies to the Town 
Clerk.  
 
 

2.   APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR (FOR DURATION OF T & F GROUP)  

 

3.   APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR  

 

4.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

 (i) Under the Localism Act 2011 (sections 26-37 and Schedule 4) and in 
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Members are required to 
declare any interests which are not currently entered in the Member’s 
Register of Interests or if he/she has not notified the Monitoring Officer of 
it.  

THIS MEETING MAY 
BE RECORDED * 

Public Document Pack

mailto:info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
http://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/
https://tinyurl.com/y5b6v492


LIVING HISTORY TASK AND FINISH GROUP Thursday, 28 January 2021 
 

 

 

(ii) Should any Member have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an item on 
the agenda, the Member may not participate in consideration of that item 
unless a Dispensation has first been requested (in writing) and granted 
by the Council (see Dispensation Procedure).  

 

5.   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC  

 

 To receive questions and statements from members of the public in respect of 
any item of business included in the agenda, as provided for in Standing Order 
No.s 3(f) and 3(g).  
 

6.   REVIEW OF THE LIVING HISTORY EVENT (Pages 1 - 8) 

 

 (a) To receive briefing notes providing background details of event delivery to 
assist discussion on the future direction for the event.   

(b) To receive a proposal for future activity. 
 

* Phones and other equipment may be used to film, audio record, tweet or blog from this meeting by an individual Council member, 
officer or member of the public.  No part of the meeting room is exempt from public filming unless the meeting resolves to go into 
exempt session.  The use of images or recordings arising from this is not within the Council’s control. 



 
 
 
 

   
 

 
Living History Event Task and Finish Group      

 
Date:    28 January 2021 
 
Purpose of the Report: Living History Event review information 
 
Contact Officer: Ben Bodsworth 
 
 

INFORMATION PAPER 
 
1. BACKGROUND LIVING HISTORY DAY 
 

The Council has been delivering the Living History Heritage Day since, if not 
before, 2007. The delivery area was spread from Parson’s Close Recreation 
Ground, the High Street and inside All Saints Church.  
 
The event is delivered during October. Weather conditions are not always 
favourable, and the spread of the event activities worked best on a fair-weather 
day yet suffered in inclement weather.  
 
Staff identified annual themes and the delivery involved the same level of 
planning and input of staff as all the events. To date, themes have been 
repeated, e.g., Medieval, various wars – Civil and World, History Through the 
Ages (Generic), etc. 
 
Since 2017, the Living History Day event has taken place alongside the charter 
market in the High Street to address issues of weather and muddy ground and 
to consolidate the activities. Events to date featured re-enactors, demonstrators 
and exhibitors focussing on a historical period. Prior to this, in 2016 a History 
of Pubs event took place within Public Houses in the town and in 2015 an event 
titled “In our Lifetime” took place. A hybrid-trail took place in 2020 due to the 
coronavirus pandemic.  
 
No overarching aims and objectives for the event were inherited when the new 
staff team began delivery of the day. The assumption made was that the day 
would seek to inform and educate residents about the history of the town or a 
specific historical period. Themes, such as Medieval history, have been broad 
in nature with little direct link to an aspect of the Town’s history. Where possible, 
the event links with an appropriate national theme, e.g.,100 years of the end of 
World War 1.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 6



 
  

   
 

 
2. BUDGET 

 
The budget (101/4516) for the delivery of the Living History event has been:  
 

2017/18; £10,000 
2018/19; £10,000 
2019/20; £10,000 
2020/21; £10,700 

 
In addition to the event delivery budget, a staffing budget of £600 has been 
allocated from the event salaries budget (101/4003, 101/4532 in 2020/21) for 
the delivery of the event.  

 
3. PREVIOUS YEARS DELIVERY EXAMPLES 
 

2017 
In 2017, the event studied the medieval period featuring over 20 live 
demonstrations of life during the period. A marquee was situated on the 
southern side of the high street with a demonstration area in Waterborne Walk. 
Demonstrations included jousting, a court jester, a falconer, medieval cooking, 
live musicians and a medieval fashion show.  

 
 2018 

In 2018, a commemoration of the end of World War 1 took place with 
demonstrations including Solder Pewter Casting & Painting, an Army First Aid 
Post, drill activities including signalling and training for life on the front line. A 
World War 1 Bristol Scout Bi-plane was situated in the turning circle with music 
provided by RAF Halton and Fiona Harrison in the turning circle and bus stop 
area. Marquee cover was provided for static demonstrations and for the musical 
performances.  

 
 2019 

In 2019, life in Victorian Britain was highlighted with demonstrations from 
Queen Victoria, her private secretary and a Victorian puppet theatre. Alongside 
static demonstrations, Victorian folk took residence around the market cross, 
soldiers demonstrated drill and rifle firing and a cavalryman and his horse were 
joined by a penny farthing cyclist. A Victorian fire pump was provided by 
Frogmore Papermill and demonstrated to visitors to the event. Again, a 
marquee was situated on the south side of the high street with demonstrations 
taking place in the turning circle.  
 
2020 
Planning for the 2020 event was cut-short by the coronavirus pandemic and an 
alternative event was delivered. Featuring the history of shops & businesses 
within the town centre, residents were encouraged to follow a trail around the 
town centre to discover local history. Digital content was created and uploaded 
to social media accounts to compliment the trail. This gave two options for 
members of the public to engage in the activity: physically or via the digital 

Page 2



 
  

   
 

platform. The collation of historical information now serves to create a virtual 
library of information directly associated with the Town, a legacy of information.  
 

4. EXISTING ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES FOR CHANGE  
 
The below SWOT analysis provides a brief overview of the pros and cons 
associated with continuing to deliver an ‘event’ only approach alongside with 
the opportunities for change. 

 
 

STRENGTH 

 Existing Audience via market 
 Established event & audience 

 Existing delivery budget 

 Engagement with Leighton 
Buzzard District Archaeological & 
Historical Society (LBDAHS) 

 

WEAKNESS 

 Repetitive themes 

 Seasonal weather  

 Audience turnout dependant 
on weather  

 Lack of specific Town 
history delivered in broad 
themes 

 Stagnation, repetitive 
theming 

 Lack of future vision 
 

OPPORTUNITIES 

 New digital platforms available & 
increasingly used 

 Creation of digital content to 
engage new audiences – content 
reach/ audience expanded 

 Content delivery throughout 
calendar year – value for money  

 Time to rethink & reset the future 
of the event/budget 

 Event location & layout for 
different day  

 Change delivery month option 
 

THREATS 

 Event location & layout of 
market longer term  

 Present day - Covid-19 
ongoing impact, e.g. social 
distancing requirements, 
gathering, etc. 

 Lack of direction for the 
event 

 Lack of meaningful 
association with the Town 
when the theme is broad 

 
 

 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



 
 
 
 
 
 
Cultural and Economic Services Committee      

 
Date:   28 January 2021 
 
Purpose of the Report: Living History – Proposal  
 
Contact Officer: Ben Bodsworth  
 

 
PROPOSAL DOCUMENT 

  
Initial thoughts of officers. 
To focus on a three-year timescale and then review again. Consistency for work would 
be helped by this approach as well as that for the public. By this time, it would be 
hoped that ongoing or legacy Covid influences will be understood.  
 
Deliver on street engaging ‘activity’ rather than a full ‘event’ 
Delivering programmed activity yet not a full event style day. This still maintains a 
Living History Day presence within the diarised social programme for the Town.  
 
Continue to build on recent activity  
Delivery activity for the day and leave ongoing, easy to access, historic assets, e.g., 
Publications, and add to the digital/virtual library of historic data. This in turn feeds into 
providing schools with study information as well as inspiring existing and new 
resident’s interest in the town – ‘knowing’ about where they live.  
 
Rationale behind the above thought process. 
In 2016, a new approach was taken to delivering the event which focused on the 
history of local pubs. The approach led to the creation of an event legacy document in 
the form of the publication, “The Changing Face of our Pubs’. The publication can be 
found on the LLTC website/publication page.  
 
https://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/site/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/living-history-
pub-booklet-updated-Jan-21.pdf 
 
When delivering this approach, the event element proved overly burdensome so was 
not repeated. When launching the Living History Trail on the new Buzzard Trail App 
platform in 2019, the digital trail was complemented on the event day with actors 
dresses up as Trail characters who spoke in character about the legacy of their historic 
lives on the town.  
 
This showed that similarly to the pub trail, the combination of associating an activity 
with the creation of an annual legacy document or item, could work well. Whilst this 
took place alongside the ‘event’ day. It could have worked as a standalone activity 
without the need for a larger event.  

Page 5

https://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/site/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/living-history-pub-booklet-updated-Jan-21.pdf
https://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/site/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/living-history-pub-booklet-updated-Jan-21.pdf


 
  
 
The proposal for the future approach to delivering Living History activity is to build on 
the combination of a targeted delivery of activity that serves to work alongside the 
long-term continued creation of historic information about the town, whether that be in 
digital or publication formats, or both.  
 
For instance, in 2020 the Living History Day could not be delivered in event format. A 
targeted historic trail was created focusing on local the shops. The trail could be 
undertaken physically, or via social media platforms. After the delivery period, the 
historic information created remains as a legacy of the day and could therefore 
continue to be undertaken all year round. The information remains accessible to 
anyone who is interested in the town, its history, etc. It can be used by schools or local 
uniformed groups wanting to earn an appropriate badge. It would therefore be worth 
exploring the creation of a dedicated page on the Council’s website, a library, or 
partnering up with the local history society, ensuring a link is established between the 
two organisation's web platforms.  
 
An example of this approach is seen in the Children’s Trail. An activity sheet is 
designed to support literacy and numeracy learning. A reading list associated with the 
Trail is promoted. The historic date serves to introduce social history whether that be 
through businesses like last year’s shop trail or through sharing people’s personal 
history like the current Living History Trail- Buzz Trails.  
 
Overarching aims and objectives. 
 
Aims: 
Through delivery of Living History Day activity, create a library of accessible Town 
historic information that supports learning and understanding of the Town’s social 
history.  
 
Objectives: 
a. Buzzard Trails App – change the historic characters of the existing trail and/or 

expand to this list and trails 
b. Council website location for library of history related resources created through the 

delivery of Council activities and strong links to other local websites for furtherance 
for exploration and for ease of access 

c. Ongoing development of collaborative work with local organisations towards 
creation of resources and contributions to activities  

 
DELIVERY  
To deliver both physical and digital content, additional trails or updated trails will be 
made available to members of the public annually via the Buzzard Trails App. During 
a period of additional publicity around the launch of a new trail, characters from the 
trail will be positioned around the town highlighting the building or location featured. A 
theme or time period in the town’s history could be selected when creating a new trail.  
 
It is hoped a local drama or performance group would be commissioned to deliver the 
performances of characters from the trail. Alternatively, professional performers could 
be commissioned where a local performer isn’t available or suitable.  Videos of 

Page 6



 
  
performances could be taken and uploaded onto Leighton-Linslade Town Council 
social media and website to further promote the trails.   

 
Following the delivery of the annual launch day, the new trail would become available 
for individual members of the public, schools and uniformed organisations to take part 
in at any time either physically or digitally. For those not able to use an app or website, 
a printed booklet would be made available alongside a downloadable version from the 
Leighton-Linslade Town Council website.  
 
CONCLUSION 
 
There has been a lack of focus for the event. Over recent years, Committee has 
increased its work for establishing access to Town history through introducing the 
Living History Trail.  Given the legacy information created from more recent delivery 
approaches for this event, there appears to be a naturally emerging way forward which 
at this time, also recognises uncertainty for the immediate future for during and post 
Covid circumstance. Although not a full event style day, an opportunity to engage with 
an audience physically and digitally exists with a legacy opportunity.  
 
The above can be delivered within the existing dedicated budget. 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8


	Agenda
	6 REVIEW OF THE LIVING HISTORY EVENT
	b. Proposal v2


